CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Members of

Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Delhi Airport Meitro Express Private Limited (“the
Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including
other comprehensive income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accountmg policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred {0 as “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of cur information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
financial statements give the informafion required by the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its Loss {including other comprehensive income), the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing {SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Cur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we
have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilifies in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics, We
believe that the audit evidence we have oblained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters:

We draw attention to Note No.23 where the Company had in earlier years, claimed CENVAT Credit of Rs.43.04 Crore
on purchases of fixed assets and accordingly netted off the same from the "Right Under Concession Agreement”. The
claim of CENVAT Credit was disallowed by Commissioner, Chandigarh, which was under dispute with Commissioner
{Appeals) of Customs and Excise, Delhi and imposed a penalty of Rs.85.01 Crore. The Company has filed an appeal
with CESTAT against the order of commissioner and pending outcome of the appeal, the same has not been provided
for in the books of accounts.

We draw altention to Note No. 24 (a) regarding dispute between Delhi Airport Mefro Express Private Limited
(DAMEPL.) and Dethi Metre Rail Corperation (DMRC). The dispute was referred to the Arbitration Tribunal, which, vide
its Order dated May 11, 2017, granted arbitration award in favour of DAMEPL for Rs 4,662.59 Crore. The said award
was upheld by the single bench of Henorable High Court of Delhi and challenged in division bench by DMRC., Vide
Judgement dated September 09, 2021, the Order of Single Bench of Delhi High Court and the Award were upheld by
the Supreme Court. The Company filed execution petition before Delhi High Court on September 12, 2021 on which
Delhi High Court passes final Crder on March 10, 2022, During the year DMRC had deposited Rs. 1,766.44 Crore in
the escrow account of the Company as per interim Order dated December 06, 2021 of the Hon'ble Delhi High Court,
and the same was utilized by the Company for its debt repayments. Also since DMRC has not paid the installment
due on April 30, 2022 af least to the extent of the undisputed portion, the Company is filing suitable proceeding for
speedy realization of the sums receivable. Resultant impact on the profit & loss account and the final adjustment
entries will be determinad after the execution of final award.

We draw attention to Note N0.33 regarding the Company's accumulated loss exceeding the net worth of the
Company. The arbitration award was upheld in favour of the Company and DMRC is consequently diracted to pay
Termination payment and other compensation, totaling to Rs.2,245 Crore, plus pre-award and post-award interest up
o the date of payment. During the year DMRC has deposited Rs.1766.44 Crore in the escrow account of the
Company and the same has been utilised for debt repayment. The company is filing suitable proceeding for speedy
realisation of balance sums receivable. In view of above, financial statements are prepared on going concern basis.

We draw attention to Note No. 24 {a) regarding no adjustment has been carried out for the impairment of fixed assets.
The arbitration award was upheld in favour of the Company and BMRC is consequently directed to pay Termination
payment and cther compensation, totaling to Rs.2,945 Crore, plus pre-award and post-award interest up to date of
payment. During the year DMRC has deposited Rs.1766.44 Crore in the escrow account of the company and the
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same was utilised. for debt repayment. The Company is filing suitable proceeding for speedy realisation of balance
sums receivable. The arbitration award amount was more than the carrying value of fixed assets.
Qur report is not modified on these matters.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsibie for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the
preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performancas,
changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irrsgularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudenf; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectivety for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether dus to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for agsessing the Company's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related fo going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errer, and to issue an audifor's report that includes our opinion,
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and ars
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the aconomic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise prefessional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

» ldeniify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal contral.

+« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinicn on wheather the company has adequate internal financial conftrols system in place and the
operating effectiveness of such controls.

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conciusions are based
on the audit evidence cobtained up to the date of cur auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company-to-cease o continue-as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
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influsnced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the results of our work; and (i) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies In internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide these charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reaschably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order"} issued by the Ceniral Government in
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 1” a statement on the matiers specified in paragraphs
3 & 4 of the Order to the extent applicable.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as reguired by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement
of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agraemant with the books of
account;

(d)} [n our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed
undsr Section 133 of the Act;

{e) The going concern matter described in Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern section above, in our
opinicn, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company;

(f} On the basis of the written representations receivad from the directors as on March 31, 2022 and taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(9) With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in *Annexure 2”;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the requirements of
section 19718} of the Act, as amended,
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of the Act;

(i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors} Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:

(i} There were no pending litigations which would impact financia! positicn of the Company.

(iiy The Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable tosses.

(ifiy There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and protection
fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2022.

(iv) (a) Management has represented to us that, fo the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any
other persons or entities, including foreign entities {*Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on bahalf of the company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;,
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(b} Management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts no funds have been received by the company from any person{s)
or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Funding Partias"), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or tha like on behalf of tha Ullimate Bensficiarias

(¢} Based on our audit procedure conducted that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our attention that cause us to believe that the representation given-
by the management under paragraph (2) (h) (iv) {a) & (b} contain any materlal misstatement,

{v} The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year.

For Bakliwal & Co.
-Chartered Accountants
Regn.No.130381W

Ankur Jain
Partner.
Membership No.197643

Place; Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2022
UDIN: 2219764 3AIPFJ0O2702
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(i)

(i
(i

(iif)

(iv)
v)

(vi)

{vii)

(viil)

{ix)

ANNEXURE - 1 To The INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred to in our report of even date of Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited on the accounts
- for the year ended March 31, 2022

As informed to us, the Company has handed over all the assets to Delhi Metro Rail Corporation {(DMRC) upon
termination of concession agresment with effect from 1% July 2013, however, due to pending legal proceedings,
the fixed assets have been continued to be shown in the books of accounts of the Company. Therefore, clause
(i} of the Order is not applicable.

(a) As explained to us, there is no inventory hence clause 3(ii) of the Order is not applicable.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, The Company has not been sanctioned any
working capital limits from any bank or financial institution, Hence provisions of ciause 3 (ii}{b) of the Order is
not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or
unsecured or investments or advances or guarantess or security to companies, firms or other parties during the
year. Therefore clause (iii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, investment, guarantees and security during the year. Hence, clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposit which is
deemed to be depasit from the public hence clause 3{v} of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and expianations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1} of the Act for the Company. Therefore, clause (vi) of the
Order is not applicable. '

a) In terms of the information and explanations given by the Company and the books and records examined by
us, we state that the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, employees' state insurance,
income-tax, Goods and Sarvice tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues, as applicable were
paid on regular basis. There were no statutory dues, outstanding for more than six months from the date
they became payable as on March 31, 2022.

b} In terms of the information and explanations given by the Company and the books and records examined
by us and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that there are no dues of income tax or sale tax
or service tax or duty of customs or duty of excise or value added tax or cess which have not been
deposited on account of any dispute, except as below:

Name of Nature of Dues | Peried to which it Amount in | Forum Where

Statute relates Rs. (‘000) dispute is pending

Finance Act, 1884 | CENVAT penalty AY.2009-10,2010-11, 656,01,00 CESTAT
2011-12 )

As per the information and explanations given to us and based on our examinations of the records of the
Company, there are no transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been surrendered or
disclosed as incomea during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1861,

{a) According to the information and explanations given tc us and based on examination of the records of the
Company, the Company has defaulted in repayment of loans or berrowings te financial institution or bank for
the following instances in repayment of principal and interest amount. The Company did not have any loans or
borrowings from government during the year.

Bank Amount Due - Amount due — Period
Interest Rs. in ‘000’ Principal Repayment

Axis bank 7.726 - March 2022
Allahabad Bank 5,888 - March 2022
Andhra Bank 3,452 - March 2022
Bank of India 8,157 - March 2022
Canara Bank 2,095 - March 2022
Central Bank of India 7,110 - March 2022
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J

Bank of Baroda {(Dena Bank} 13,781 - March 2022
Punjab & Sindh Bank 5,690 - March 2022
UCQ Bank 8,897 - March 2022
IIFC UK 22,670 - February 2022-
. N March 2022
T Total | 86,266 - T

*The arbitration award was upheld in favour of the Company and DMRC is consequently directed to pay Termination
payment and other compensation, totaling to Rs.2,945 Crore, plus pre-award and post-award interest up fo the date of
payment. During the year DMRC has deposited Rs.1766.44 Crore in the escrow account of the Company and the same was
utilised for debt repayment. The Company is filing suitable proceeding for speedy realisation of balance sums receivable.
Refer note 24{a} of the Notes on Accounts,*

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our audit procedures, we
report that the Company has not been declared willful dafaulter by any bank or financial institution or
other lender.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on examination of the records
of the Company, we report that during the year Company has not obtained any term loans.

{d) According te the information and explanations given to us and based on an overall examination of the
financial statements of the Company, funds raised on short term basis have, prima facie, not been used
during the vear for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e} According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overalt examination of the  financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person
on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

{fy According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report
that the Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries,
joint ventures or associate companies.

(a} In our opinion and according to the infermation and explanation given to us during the course of audit, the
company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {including debt instruments)
and term loans during the year. Therefore clause (ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(b} According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or
debentures during the year hence clause 3{x){b) of the Order is nct applicable.

(@) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, ne fraud on the Company or by
the Company, by its cfficers or employees has been noticed or raported during the year.

(b) Accarding to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of
the Act has been filed by auditers in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

(c) According 1o the information and explanations given to us, no whistle-blower complaints have been received
during the year by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore,
clause {xit) of the Order is not applicable.

In terms of the informaticn and explanations given by the company and the bocks and records examined by us
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that transactions with the related parties are in compliance
with sections 177 & 188 of the Act, whare applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in
Ind AS financial statements as reguired by the applicable accounting standards.

(a) In terms of the information and explanations given by the company, and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, in our opinion the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size
and the nature of its business.

(bWe have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued {ill date for the period under audit.
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{xv)

Xvi)

~In terms of the information and explanations given by the Company and the books and records examined by us
and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that the Company has not entered into non- cash
transaction with directors or persons connected with him. Therefore, clause (xv) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

(a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(b} In our opinion and aécording to the information and explanations provided to us and on the basis of cur audit
procedures, the Company has not conducted any Nen-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities during
the year as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,

(¢} In our opinion and according to the Information and explanations provided to us, the Company is not a Core
Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of India.

(d} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, there is only one Reserve
Bank of India registered CIC which may be deemed to be part of Group. Howaver, the said CIC is under
corporate insolvency resclution process with its Beard being superseded by an RBI nominated Administrator.

xvii} The Company has incurred cash lossas in the current year and in the immediately preceding year.

xviiiy Our éppointment was made during the year to fill the casual vacancy caused by the resignation of the previous

auditors. On examining their audit report we observe no material issues, objectlons or cencerns raised by the
outgeing auditors.

xix) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and

expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence suppoerting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which
causes us fo believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not
capable of mesting its liabiliies existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of
one year from the balance shest date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability
of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the-facts up te the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities fatling duse within a period of one ysar from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

)oé) According to information and explanations given to us, and based on our examination of the financial statements

of the Company, the CSR requirement is not applicable tc the Company in view of losses incurred by the
Company. Accordingly, clause 30x){a} and (xx}{b) of the Order is not applicable.

For Bakliwal & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Regn.No.130381wW

Ankuf Jain
Parther
Membership No.197643

FPlace: Mumbai
. Date; May 06, 2022
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ANNEXURE - 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
Referred fo in our report of even date of Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited
for the year ended March 31, 2022

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause {i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company as of March 31, 2022 in
conjunction with cur audit of the ind AS financial statements for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company's management is respensible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Coempany considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Conirols over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India {"'{CAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
preventicn and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's interal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Nete on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial
Reporting {the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit-of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by ICAlL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate infernat financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and it such conirols
operated effactively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their cperating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial confrols over
financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that @ material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectivenass of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and approbriate fo provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system cver financial reporting

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external purposes
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS financial
statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are baing made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and
(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the Ind AS financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detecied. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
pericds are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadeguate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate
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_Opinion :

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31% March 2022,
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial .
Reporting issued by ICAL '

For Bakliwal & Co.
Charterad Accountants
Regn.No.130381W

Ankur Jain
Partner
Membership No.197643

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 06, 2022
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2027

Date: 06.05.2022

{Amount in Rs,'000)
Particulars Note Agal As at
No, March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Aggot
I. Non~current assets
{a) Properly, plant and equipment 21 90,802 90,802
{b) Other Intangible Assols 22 2,71,24,551 2,71,24,551
{c) Other nen-current asseis :
{1y Advance ather than capilal advance 3 40,898 40,808
(it} Others 3 4,530,401 4,530,401
2,76,56,652 2,76,86,652
Current assets
{a) Financial assats
(i) Trade receivables 4 - .
(ii) Cash and Banlk Balance . 5 9,34,346 1,839,126
(lif) Other Recoverable 6 1,536 1,82,48,346
{b} Current tax assets 7 . 177
9,535,882 1,83,87,649
. Total assets 286,22 534 4,60,78,501
[Rquity and Habilities
Tquity
Share capital 8 9,600 9,600
Other equity 9 1,74,24,430 1,74,69,521
. 1,74,34,030 1,74,79,121
Liabilities :
None-current liabilittes
{a) Financial Linbilities
(i) Borrowings 10 54,48,838 1,04,55,178
(b) Provistons 11 2,323 2,207
54,51,160 1,04,57 285
Currant Habililies .
(a) Financial Liabitities _
(i) Tracto payables : 12
Tolal outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprise 253 . 7
Total e tstavding cues Lo crec}ttors ather than Micro 13,26,370 | 13,19,015
Enterprise and Small Enterprise
{ii) Bervowings 13 48,568 48,42,252
(i) Other fnnisetal Babtlites 14 86,266 47,2419
(b Provisions 15 69 B
{c) Othier current Habilitics 14 42,75 518 72,52,192
. 57,37,344 1,81,37,795
Total Equity and Liabilities 2,36,22,554 4, 60,724,301 |
Eee accompanying notes to the financlal stalemenis
In terms of our Report of even date
For Bakliwal & Co. Por and om bohalf of the Board * -
Charteree] Acconnlants
Firm Reen, No, 130381 W
Ankur Jdin Milind Rainchandra Mule Rakesh Kumar Yadav
. Partner Diveitor Director
Membership No. 1976453 THN: 08887556 DIN-0008364895
Place : Mumbal

Place : Naw Delhj
Dale: 06.05.2022




DULALAIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the yoar ended Maech 31, 2022

{Amount in Rs."(00)
Partienlavy Nute Year ended Year puded
No, March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Revenue from Operationy - z
Other Income 17 40 54
Total Income a0 5d
Lxponses
Hmpleyee benefll expenscs 18 9,97 7,088
Fluance Cost 19 37,653 8,153
Depreeiation and Amertization Fxpensc 21822 - -
Cthur Bxpenses 20 48,998 27,086
Totul Expenses 96,605 43,137
Prafit/ {Loss} before tax (26,515} {(43,77¢)
Tax Hxpense
Current Tax - -
Deferred Tax - -
Profitf {Loss) for the year (95,515} (43,072)
Othier Comprehensive Income
Ttem Lhitt witl not by vexlasstfied to profit or loss -
"otal Other Compreheistve Incoine, net of taxes - -
Total Camprehensive Incasie far the yenr {96,515} {43,074
Rarning per equtity share of £5.10 ench fully paid wp
(1) Braie ' 29 {oL) (45)
2} Diluted pal {101) (45)
Sos accompinying notes to the financlal statements

In bore of our Report of even date
For Balliwal & Co.

Chattered Accountants

Firm Regn, No, 130381W

Ankir Jaih
Partner
Meraberehip No. 197643

- Place : Mumbal
Date: 06.05.2022

For and on bohalf of the Boaed

Milind Ramchandea Mole

Direcloy

1IN DBBATS56

Place : New Delld
Drate: 06.05.2022

Rakesh Kumar Yaday
Director
PIN-0008%64895




o
DELHI AIRPORT METRO UXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statensent fox the year ended March 31, 2022 ;
i
{Amount in Re.'000) '
- Particnlars . Year ended Year em{edl
. Maxch 31, 2022 Mareh 31, 2021
(A} Cash flow fruin Operating Activities
Net Profit / {Loas) after tax . (96,518) (43,074)
Adjustment to reconefie profit hefore tax to not gayh flow:
Finanee Cost (including Intesmst and Bnance Charges) . 37,633 8,153
Finaneo Income {ncluding nterest & Dividend Invotie and Capltal Cain) (90 (54
Net Foreign Bxchangs Differences 1,657 798
Cagh Flow from operating activitles before Warking Capital Changes {57,315) (34,178)
Working Capital Adjustmen: I
(Increase) fDecreasa in Other Financial Assels 1,37,40,6450 o) ;
Incrense/ (Decrease) in Non Current Provision 115 {125 i
Increase/ (Decreasc) In Trade Payabiles C 5,874 250 !
Inerease/ {Decreags) I Other Current Liabilttics {29,76,674) {198) |
Anereage/ {Decrease} in Current Provision ) {43) ;
Cash flaw from Operating Activiting . 107.12,670 {33,703) i
Income Tax (Paid)/ refund {net) : 177 11 2
Cash Flow from/ (used in) Operatiing Activities (A) : 107,12 847 {32,653) ;
(B) Cash Plow from Investing Activities _ 5
Inlerest Incumg vy B4 :
_ Invastment in Deposits including Margln money } (249 (50) {
Cash Flow (rom /{used in} Investing Activitivs (B) a7 i !
(C} Cash flow frgn; Blnaneing Activitics
Repayment of Secured Loans {99,38,340) 0
Procesds from Sub Debl and ICD (net) 51,424 43,908
Pinancial Txpenacs ] (30,802 £104)
Cash flow from / {used in} Financing Activities {C) {99,17,717) 33,804 : :
{R) Net Inerease/(Idecreasc) in Cash and Cash equivalents {A+B+C) 7 95,155 TiG
Opening Balanee of Cash and Cash cquivalents 1,38,180 1,38,064 '
Closing Balance of Cash and Cash equivalents ‘ _ %,33,376 1,538,180
el Tnerease/(Decrease) in Cash and Casle cquivalents . 7,95,1% 116 :
i
Cowmpaenents of Cash and Caslt Tiquivalents _ . ;
Balances with Banlk !
(i} In Currrent accaunt : 9,33,576 1,385,180
{b) In Depoait account . N
$,33,375 1,28,180)




NELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRTSS PRIVATE LIMITED
Cash Flow Statensent for the year ended March 31, 2022

{Amount in Rs.'000)

Nates

e The above cash flow stakement has been prepared under the "Indirect Method® as sef owt in the IND AS-7 on Causly Mlow Stalements,

i Reconcilalton of Liablities atising out from financing uetivities .. . _ ..o s o

Particulars Asat Cash Flows Non Cash flow thanges Asal
April 1, 2021 March 31, 2022
’ Fair Value | Foraign exchany
Changes moy ement
M |Long Term Liablities 1,52,97,430 {99,38,340) 6,831 1,31,738 £4,97,707
Partlcalars As al Cash quwa Non Casls flow changes Asat
’ April 1, 2020 Mavels 33, 2021
Fair Value | Foreign exchange '
Changes myvement
1 Long Tarm Liablities 1,54,02,516 0 8,049 (1,13,1.35) 1,53,97,430
In terms of our Report of even date
For Bakliwal & Co. for and on behalf of the Board
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn, No 130381W
Anlenr fald, ' Milind Ramehandra Mule . Rakesh Kumar Yaday
Parlney Dirgctor Diveetor
Membership No. 197643 DIN: 08867556 DIN-0008364895
Place : Muambel Place : New Dall

Dale: 06052022 Dute; 06.05.2022




DELHI AIRFORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITRED
Statement of Changes in Equlty for the year ended March 31, 2022

A EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(Amount in Xs.'000)

Particulars " Notes Bakanee at the Changesin | Balance af the
heginning of.the _|._equity share——|-end of theyeat |- oo
year capttal duxing
the year
Ag at March 31, 2021 [ 9,600 - 9,600
Az at March 31, 2022 9,600 - 9,600
B. OTHER EQUITY
Paeticilars Notes Other Equity- Retalned Other . Total Exuity
Equity Component Earuing Comprehensive
of compound Income
financial
inatraments '

As at1 April 2020 9 2,52,06,381 {77,27,429) {266) - 1,74,78,686
Protit/{l.oss) for the year - (43,074 - (43,0743
Other comprehensive - - - i
income/ {loss) for the year
Total comprehensive - - - .
income/ (loss) for the year ,
Sulr Debt Taken/ (Paid) during 83,908 - - 33,908
the year . .
As at March 31, 2021 2/52,40,289 (77,76,503) {266) 1,74,69,521
As at April 1, 2021 2,52,40,289 (77,70,503) (206) L,74,69,521
Prafit/(Loss) for the year {96,515) “ (96,515)
Other comprehensive - B : - -
income/ (loss) for the year
Total comprehensive - -
income/ (loss} far the year
Sub Debt Taken/ (Paid) during 51,424 - - 51,4241
the ycar :
Ar at March 31, 2022 9 2,52,91,713 {7#8,67,018) (266) 1,74,24,430
The above Statement of Changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes,

In terras of our Report of even date

For Bakliw_al & Co,
Chartercd Accountants
Firrn Rogn, No. 130381W

Ankur J:ﬁn
Partner
Membership No, 197643

Place : Mumbail
Dates 06.05.2022

For and on behalf of the Board

Milind Ramchaﬂdru Mule " Rakesh Kumar Yaday

Director . - Director
DIN: 08867556 o . DIN-00D8364895

Place : New Delhi
Date: 06,05.2022




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financfal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 1. Corporate Information, Basis of Preparation of Financials and Significant Accounting Policies

1.1

1.2

Background of the Company

Delld Airport Metro Express Private Limited (the "Company" or "DAMEPLY), having CIN U742100L2008PTCI76177, was
incorporated on April 01, 2008. Its registered office is at A-302, 3rd Floor, 6, Dr. AP, Abdul Kalam Road, New Delli 110011,

DAMEPL has been set up to undertake the business of “Design, Installation, Comimissioning, Operation and Mainlenance of Aidrport
Metro Express Line ie. New Delhi - Indira Gandhi International Airport - Dwarka Sector-21” {Project). Delhi Metro Rail Corporation
Limiled (DMRC) had entered inte a Concession Agreement with the Compa ny on August 23, 2008 for the project for a period of 30
years, '

Pursuant to certain evenis of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), the "Company”, had terminated the Concessicn
Agreement vide Termination Notice dated October 08, 2012 and consequently the entire assets (including project assets) had been
handed over to DMRC with effect from 1st July 2013 and the Company ceased to provide for depreciation/amortisation, Refer note 24

{a).

Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements comply in all material aspects with Tndian Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other relevant provisions of the Act. The
policics set out below have been consistenily applied during the Year prescnted. Figures have been rounded off to Rupees thousand
otherwise than specifically stated.

Basis of Measurement

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (IND ABs) with the going-concern principle
and on a historical cost basis excepl for Certain Financials Assets and Liabilities that are measured al Fair Value {Refer Accounting
Policy Regarding Tinancial Instrumenls). The methods used to measure fair values are discussed below.

The presentation and grouping of individual items in the Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit & Loss and the Statement of Cash Flow
are based on the principle of materiality.

Fair value is the price that would be received to scll an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly ohservable or cstimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the company takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
it market participants would take those characieristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date,

All assets and liabilitics for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are calegorised within the fair value
hicrarchy, describes as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurcment as a whole:

* Level 1 inputs arc quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for jdentical assets or Habilities that the entity can access at the
measurement dale;

* Level 2 inpuls are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly; and

* Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability,

Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presenied in Indian Rupees (INR), which is the Company’s functional currency.

i
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i
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

d.

1.3

a.l
all

1.2

Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification,
An assel is classified as current if;
© lbis expected to be realised, or is intended fo be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle; or
Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or
Tt js expected to realisc the asset within 12 months after the reporting period; or
The assel is a cash or cquivalent unless il is restricted from being exchanged or used to scttle a liability for at least 12 months after
the reporting period.
All other asscts are classified as non-current,

Similarly, a liability is classified as current if;

It is expected to be settled in the normal operating cycle; or

Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading; or

itis due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period; or

The Company does not have an unconditional ri ght to dofer the settlemenl: of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Torms of a liability that could result in its settletment by the issue of equity instruments al the option of the counterparty does
not affect this classification.
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

Deferred tax assels/liabilities are classified as non-current.

Use of Estimates ;

The preparation of financial statemenls requires management to make judgments, cstimates and assumptions that may impact the
application of accounting policies and the reported value of assels, labilitios, income, expenses and related disclosurcs concernin g the
items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilitics at the balance sheet dato, The estimates and management’s judgments are
based on previous experience and other factors considerad reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual results may differ from
those estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions ko accounting ostimates are recognised in the
period in which the estimates are revised and in any future poriods affected.

Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as given below. These
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all petiods presented in the financial statements,

Hnancial instruments

A financial instrument is any contracl that gives rise to a financial asset of one entily and a financial lability or equity instrument of
another entity,

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial asscts are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets ot recorded at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition or issuc of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A’debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

() The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

(b} Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and intercst (SPPT) on1
the principal amount outstanding.

After inilial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR, The EIR
amortization is included in finance income in the Statement of profit and loss, The losses arising from impairment are recogmized in the
Statement of profit and loss, This category generally applics to trade and ofher receivables.




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

all

al.d

Debt instrument at FVTOCI (Fair Value through OCJ}

A’debt instrument’ is classificd as at the FVTOCT if both of the following crileria are met:

{a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecling contractual cash flows and selling the financial asscts, and
{b) The asset’s contractual cash Aows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FYTOCT category are measured initially as well as al cach reporling date at fair value. Fair valuc
movements are recognized in the OCIL However, the Company recognizes interest income, impairment losses & reversals and foreign
exchange gain or loss in the profit and loss. On derccognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCT ig
reclassified from the equity to profit and loss, Infercst earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income
using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair value through profit or loss) _ '

BVYTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCT, is classified as at FVIPL,

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amoitized cost or FYTOCL criteria, as at
FVYTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognilion inconsistency (referred
to as ‘accounting mismatch’). Debt instrumonts included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes
recognized in the profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in entities other than subsidiaries and joint ventures are measwred at fair value, Equity instruments which are
held for trading are classified as at FVTPL, For all other equity instruments, the Company decides to classify the same eithor as at
FVTOCI or FVTPL, The Company makes such election on an instrament by instrument basis. The classificalion is made on initial
recognilion and is irrcvocable. '

If the Company decides to classify an equity inslrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCL There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&LL, even on sale of investment, I Iowever, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FV1PL ca tegory are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit and loss,

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when;

~The righls to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

~The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash fows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash
flows in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through’ arrangement; and cither {a) the Company has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks

and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset,

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (BCL) modcl for measurement and recogiilion of impairment
loss on the following financial assels and credit risk exposure:

{m)Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured al amortized cost e, g loans, debt securities, deposits, trade receivables
and bank balance.

{b} Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at EVTOCL -

(c) Trade receivables under Ind AS 18,




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

a.2
a2l

.22

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposire, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. Tf credit rislk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to
provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifctime ECL is used, I, in a subsequent period, credit
quality of the instrument improves sich that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial labilities arc classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, borrowings, payables, or
as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at
fair value and, in the case of borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilitics
include trade and other payables, borrowings including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracls and derivative | inancial
instruments,

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Finaneial liabilities at amortized cost

Abter initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the FIR method, Amortized cost
is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortization is included in finance costs in the profit or loss. This category generally applies {o trade payables and other
contractual liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial lfabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Financial liabilitics are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the necar term, This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Company that arc not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by ind-AS 109, Separated embedded
derfvatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as cffective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated al the initial date of
recognilion, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 arc satisfied, For liabilities designated as TVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to
changes in own credit risk are recognized in OCL These gains/losses are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. Tlowever, the
Company may transfer the cumulative gain or lass within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the
statement of profit or loss, The Company has not designaled any financial liability as at fair value through profit and loss.

Borrowings

After initial recognition, borrowings are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the EIR method, Gains and losses are
recognized in profit or loss when (he liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process, Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the GIR. The EIR
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the ltability is discharged or cancelled or expircs. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing lability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a
new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

f
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRISS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

C,

Intangible Assets ;
Initial recognition and measurement

The company has classificd the rights under the Concession Agrecment (o manage, operate and maintain the Alrport Metro Express
Line as Intangible Assets being ‘Rights under Concession Agreement’. The value of the Intangible asset was measured and recoghized
on the date of complelion of construction for the completed portion of the project at the cost incurred on the Project towards
construction, Design, Installation and Comnussioning of the Airport Express Line,

Cost incurred on project includes all project related expenditure viz civil works, machinery under erection, construction and erection

- matertals, pre-operative expenditure, expenditure incidental/ attributable to the construction of project and relatod borrowing cost.

These expenses are net of recoveries and income (net of tax) from surplus funds arising out of project specific borrowings,

The Company has clected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101 by not applying the provisions of Ind AS 38 retrospectively and

continue (o use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a deemed cost under Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS, Thercfore, the.

carrying amount of intangible assets as per the previous GAAP as at T April 2013, L.e.; the Company's date of transition to Ind AS, wore
maintained on transition to Ind AS.

Derecognition
An intangible assct is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon their disposal. Gains and

losses on disposal of an item of intangible assets are determined by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of
intangible assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Property, Plant & Cquipment :

Initial recognition and measurement

The gross block of the Property, Plant and Equipment's are stated at cost of acquisition or construction incly ding any cost atiributabla to
bringing the asset to thejr working condition for their intended use, less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in
valuc,

The carrying vatues of Property, Plant and Fquipment's are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying value may not be recoverable.

Derecognilion

An item of Property, Plant and Fquipment is derecogrised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derccognition of the asset (calculated as the difference betwoen the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in statement of Profit & Loss in the year the asscl is derecognised.

The asset’s residual valucs, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end.

Depreciation & Amortisation:
(i) Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment's

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment's is provided on the Straight Line Method rates over the useful lives as prescribed in
the Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

Deprectation on additions to/ deductions from property, plant & equipment ditring the year is charged on pro-rala basis from/ up to the
month in which the assel is available for use/ disposed.

(ii) Amortisation;

Intangible Assets being ‘Rights under Concession Agreement’ are amortized over the remaining Concession period on straight line
method as per Ind AS - 38 as prescribed in Schedule - IT to the Companies Acl, 2013.

Cost of software recognized as intangible asset, is amortized on straight line method over a period of legal right to use or 3 years,
whichever is less,
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED |
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(iti} T.easehold Improvement :
Leasehold Improvements arc amortized over the respective lease period.

Iowever, depreciation/ amortization on assels are not charged w.ef. 1% July, 2013 as the entire assets had been handed over to
DMRC on account of termination of concession agreement, as explained above.

e, Impairment of Non- Financial Assefs :

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial asscis are reviowed at cach reporting date to determine whether there is any ‘-‘
indicatiort of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Tmpairment of Assets”. If any such indication exists, then the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generaling unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to disposal and its value in use, In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflocts
cuarrent market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. For the purposc of impairment testing, assets
that cannot be tested individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assots or groups of assels (the “cash-generating unit”, or “CGU",

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment
losses are recognized in profit or loss. Impairment losses recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the cartying amounts of the
assols of the CGU, :

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods arc assessed at each reporting dale for any indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists, An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount, An !
impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have :
been determined, net of depreciabion or amortization, it no impairment loss had been recognized.

f. Borrowing Cost :

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/ exploration/ development or erection of qualifying assets i
are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the asscts are substantially ready for their intendod use, Qualifying assets are |
assets which take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of oblaining a gualifying asset, the borrowing cosls incurred are
capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uscs them for the purposc of obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization
of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted average cost of general borrowing that are outstanding during the period
and used for the acquisition, construction/ exploration o ercction of the qualifying asset.

H
!
{
h
i

Capitalization of borrowing costs ccases when substantially all the activiies necessary to preparc the qualifying assots for their F
intended uscs are complole. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an enti ty incurs in connection with the borrowing of ;
funds. Income earned on temporary investment of the borrowings pending their expenditure on the qualifying assets is deducted from i
the borrowing costs eligible for capitalizalion, Borrowing costs include exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings
to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an cxpense in the year in which they are incurred.

& Provisions :

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated
reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effecl of the time value of
money 15 material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current
markel assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the lability. When discounting is used, the increasc in the
provision due to the passage of ime is recognized as a finance cost.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to scttle the present obligalion at reporting
date, taking into account the risks and uncertaintes surrounding the obligation.




DELHI AIRPORT METRO TXPRESS PRIVATE LIMIITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended Mairch 31, 2022

h.  Employee benefits
L Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an enlity pays fixed contributions into separate entities and
will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are
recognized as an employce benefits expense in profit or loss in the petiod during which services are rendered by employees.

Contributions to defined conbribution schemes such as Provident Fund, ete, are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss, as and i
when incuired, |

IL Defined benefit plans
A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan, !
The gratuity is funded by the Company and is managed separately, ';

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their sorvice in the current and prior periods; that benefit is disconnted to
determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the fair valuc of any plan asscts are deducted. The discount rate is 5
based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date that have maturity dates approximating  :
the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominaled in the same currency in which the benefits are expocted Lo be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a quaiified actuary using the projected unit credit melhod, When the calculation results in a
benefit to the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the total of any unrecognized past service costs and the present value of
economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan, An
economic bonefit is available to the Company if it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities. Any
actuarial gains or losses are recognized in OCT in the period in which they arise.

i
B
i
i
i
i

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benafit rela ting to past service by employees is recognized in
profit or loss on a straighi-line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefils vest
immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in profit or loss,

IIL Other long-term employee benefits
Benefits under the Company’s leave cncashment constitute other long term employee benefits,

The Company’s net obligation in respect of Jeave encashment s the amount of future benefit that employecs have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determing jts present value, and the fair value of any related :
assets is deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yiclds of Indian government securities as at the reporting date
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations, The calculation is performed using the projected unit
credit method, Any actuarial gains or losses are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

H
.

IV, Short-lerm benefits

Shert-term employce benefil obligalions are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as [he related service is provided,
A Liabilily is recognized for the amount expected to be pald under performance rolated pay if the Company has a present legal or

constructive obligation to pay this amount as a vesult of past service provided by the employee and the obligation can be estimated
reliably,




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

k.

T.ease

Leascs, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all risks and benefits of ownership of the leased term, are classified as
operating leases. Operaling lease payments are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over
the Iease term,

Finance leases which effectively ransfer to the company substantial risks and benefils incidental to ownership of the leasod item, are
capitalized and disclosed as leased assels. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance charges and reduction of the lease
liability so as {0 achieve a constant rate of interest on the rematning balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against
income.

Revenue Recognition ;
Revenue s recognised to the extent that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue can be
reliably measured. Revenue comprises:

(i) Income from fare collection is recognized on the basis of use of tokens, money value of actual usage in case of Smart Cards and ofher
direct fare collection,

{ti) Intercst income fs recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exists, on time Proportion Basis
{using the effective interest method that is the rate that exactly discounts estimated futwre cash reccipts through the expected life of the
financial instrament to the net carrying amount of the financial asset).

(i) Income on investment is recoghized based on the terms of the investment. Income from mutual und scheme having fixed maty rity
plans is accounted on declaration of dividend or an malu rity of such investment.

Foreign Currency Transactions
‘The functional/ reporting currency of the Company is Indian Rupees.

(i) Transactions denominated in foreign currencics are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign curreﬁcy amount
the exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(i} Foreign currency monetaty items (asscts and lfabilities) are retranslated using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date.
Non-monetary items, which are measured in terms of historical cost denominated in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange
rate at the date of the transaction.

Gains and losses, if any, at the year-end in respect of monetary assets and monetary Habilities are recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss except in case of gains or losses arising on long term foreign currency monetary items relating to the acquisition of depreciable
assets which are added (o or deducted from the cost of such assets. :

Earnings per share :

Basic earnings are calculated by dividing the net profit/ (loss) for the year attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earning per share are calculated by dividing the net profits attributable to
ordinary equity holders and potential equity holders by the weighted average number of ordinary equity shares oy tstanding during the
year and weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the diluted potential ordinary shares into
ordinary shares.

Accounting for Taxes on Income :

Provision for current tax represents the amount that would be payable based on computalion of tax as per the provisions of the Income
Tax Act, 1961. Current lax {s determined based on the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year after taking into
consideration benefits admissible under the Tncome Tax Act, 1961.Current tax cx pense is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent
thal it relates lo ttems recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in which casc it is recognized in OCI or equily,




DELII AIRPORYT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

0.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, providing for temporary differences botween the carrying amounts of assets
and Habilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilitics are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offsel current. tax
liabilities and assets, and they rclate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, but they inlend to
settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and abilitios will be realized simultaneously.

Deferred tax is recognized In profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCT or equity, in which casc
it is recognized in OCI or equity.

A deforred tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the
temporary difference can be utilized, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced (o the extent that it is no
longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized,

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Cash comprises of Cash on Hand, Cheques on Hand and demand deposits with Banks. Cash Equivalents are short term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risks of changes in value.

Cash flow statement
Cash flow slatement is prepared in accordance with the indirect niethod prescribed in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows'.

Contingent liabilitics and Contingent Assets :

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations Fhat arise from past cvents and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Where it is not probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management
estimale, The confingent assets are not recoginised in financial statement, however the same is disclosed where an inflow of ccononic
benifil is probable.

i
|
[
|
I
|
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DELHI AIRPORT METRQ EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 3. Other Non Current Assels

Unsecured, considered good
{I) Advance other than capital advance
Security Deposils
Sub Total (A)
(II} Others
CENVAT Credit Reccivable |Refer note - 23(4)]
Sub Total (B)
Total (A+B)

Note 4, Trade Receivables

(i) Ulmcéul'ed, considered good
Sub Toatal {A)

(1i) Credit Impaired (More than 3 years old)
Less: Provision for Credit Impaired
Sub Total (B)

Total {A+B)

(Amount in Rs,'000)

As at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
40,898 40,898
40,898 40,898
430,401 430,401
430,401 430,401
471,299 471,299

As at Asat

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
12,008 12,008
(12,008) (12,008)




DELHI AIRFORT MUETRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 5. Cash and Bank Balance

Balances with Banks
Current Accounts®
Sub Total (A)

Cash on Hand
Cash and Cash Equivalent

Other Banl; Balance
Margin Money deposit®®
Sub Total (B)
Total (A+B)

{(Amount in Rs.'000)

* Bank Balance of Rs. 9,32,896 thousand are earmarked against the repayment of borrowing .

“Margin money deposits are given as guarantees to various government departments and banks.

Note 6. Other Recoverable

Trade Advances
Recoverable from DMRC [Refer note - 24(a)]*
Other Advances
Total
* DMRC Recoverable majorly includes:

Foreign Exchange Loss on repayment
Interest Expense

Liquidated Damages and others
Bauk Guarantee Encashed

Note 7. Current Tax Assets

Advance Tax and Tax Deducted at Source
Total

As at Asat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
033,376 138,180
933,376 138,180
933,376 . 138,180
969 946
969 946
934,346 139,126
As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,460 1,475
- 18,246,795
76 76
1,536 18,248,346
- 897,805
- 16,399,823
- 348,077
- 601,089
Total - 18,246,795
Ay at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
- 177

177




DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRLSS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Tinancial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 8. Lquity Share Capital

Authorized

Baquity Shares of Rs. 10/- cach
(as at Mar 31, 2022, : 370,000,000, as at Mar 31, 2021: 870,000,000)

Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
Equity Shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up
{as at Mar 31, 2022 ; 9,60,000, as at Mar 31, 2021: 9,60,000)

(Amount in Rs.'000)

Ag at As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
8,700,000 8,700,000
8,700,000 8,700,000
9,600 | 9,600
9,600 9,600

{a) Movements in equity share capital As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

No of Shares Amount Ne of Shares Amount
At the beginning of the year 960,000 9,600 960,000 9,600
Add: Shares Issued / bought back during the yoar - - - ' .
Outstanding at the end of the year 960,000 9,600 960,000 9,600

{b) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of R, 10/- each, Each sharcholder is cligible for onc vote per share held. In
the event of liquidation, the equity shareholders are eligible to receive the remaining asscts of the Company after distribution of all preforential

amounts, in proportion to their shareholding.

(c) Equity Shares held by holding company / Promotor

As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021
No of Shares Percenlage No of Shares Percenlage
Reliance Infrastruchure Limited 959,499 99.95% 959,499 99.95%

{d) Equity Shares held by each shareholder holding more than 5% shares

As at March 31, 2022
Ng of Shares Percentage

As at March 31, 2021
No of Shares Percentage

Reliance Infrashructure Limited 959,499 99.95%

939,499 99.95%




DELIT AIRPORT METRQO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes Forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 9. Other Lquity

(Amount in Rs.'000)

({I) Retained Earnings

Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add: Gain /(Loss) for the year

Balance at the end of the year

(II) Other Comprehensive Income

Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add: Gain /{Loss) for the year

Balance at the end of the year

(IIT} Other Equity component of financing instrument

Subordinate Debt®
0% Subordinate Debt**
Inter Corporate Deposit*™

Balance at the end of the year

Grand Total

Asat Asgat

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
{7.770,503) (7,727,429)
{96,515) {43,074)
(7,867,018) {7,770,503)

As at Asat

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
(266) {266)

{266) (266)

As al As at

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
14,502,028 14,502,028
9,510,897 9,510,897
1,278,788 1,227,364
25,291,713 25,240,239
17,424,430 17,469,521

* Subordinale Debts are repayable by mutual consent of the parties only after the primary lenders (Banks and Financial Institution) are paid in full

and in instalments as may be mutually agreed between the company and investors. Refer note 24(b)

** Subordinate Debt and Inter Corporate deposits carry vero percent interest and arc repayable after one year from the balance sheot date on

mutual consent of the parties. Refer note 24(b)




DELHI AIRPORT METRO IXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended Mareh 31, 2022

Financial Liabilities~ Non Current
(Amount in Re.'000)

Note 10. Borrewings- Non Current pottion Maturity March 31’1;;;; March 3 1:;3:;
Secured
Loan from Baols

Indian Rupee Term Loan (Floaling Rate of Interest) 2012-2026 4,684,208 8,288,729
Loan from Others

Foreign Currency Loan From Financtal Institution (Floating Rate of 2012-2026 704,631 2,166,448

Interest)

5,448,838 10,455,178

Repaywment Terms of Long Term Borrowings .

A, The Rupee Term loan from Banks and Foreign Currency loan from financial institution is repayable by quarlerly installment of 0.25% starting from
1st April 2012 to January 2015 of the disbursed amount. The quarterly installment shall incrcase by 0.25% overy year after ¥1st March 2015 and, by
additional 0,25% in B.Y. 2018-19, 2020-21, 2021-22 and 2024-25,

Effective Interest Rate

Rupee Term Loan 11.20% to 15.60%
Foreign Currency Loan from Others 5.00263% to 6.63143%

If floating rate financial lability is recognised fuitally at an amount cqual to the principal payable on malurity, re-estimating the future interest
payments normally has no significant effect on the carrying amount of the liability,

Security for Term Loans

Indian Rupee Term Lean and Torcign Currency Loan from others viven above, are secured by first charge against moveable propertios, machinery,
machinery spares, equipment, tools and accessories, vehicles, and all other movable assets excoept project assots, both present and [uture and the
borrower’s other assets, book debts, uperating cash flow, conunission, outstanding moncys including claims etc.

As per Financing documents executed with lenders, securities have been created infavour of the lenders by filing application for Registeation of
creation, modification of charge with Regisirar of Companies.

A Corporate Undertaking had been provided by the Holding Company, M/s Reliance Tnfrastructure Limited to Consortium Lenders (Banks and
Financial Inslilution) for debt servicing,

Loan covenants: .

Bank loans contain cerlain dobt covenants relating o limitation on indebtedness, debt ~equity ratio, net borrowings to EBIDA ratio and debt service
coverage ratio. The limitation on indebtedness covenant gets suspended if the comparty mects certain prescribed criteria. Due to the handing over the
project and terminalion of the concession agreement, pending award of arbitration, the Limitation on indebtodness remains suspended the debt
cavenants proscribed in the terma of bank Ioan,

Details of defaull as at balance sheet date H

Particulavs Interest Principal Repayment |Period
Indian Rupee Term Loan {Floating Rate of Interest) 63,506 - Mar-22
Foreign Currency Loan From Financial Tnstitulion
" | (Floaling Rate of Interest) . 19,269 = |Feb22 ko March 22
Total 82,865 -
Note 11. Non Current Provision . As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits
-Provision for Gratuity 1,555 1,471
-Provision for Leave Fncashment 768 736

2,322 2,207




DELHIAIRPORT METRO EXI'RESS PRIVATE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Vinancial Statements (ov Lhe year ended March 31, 2022

Finanelal Liabilities- Current

Note 12, TFrade Payables

Total outstanding dues of Micro Enterprise and Smiall Enlerprise

Tolal oulstanding dues Lo credilors other than Micro Interprise and Small

Fntorprise

Trade payables agalng schedula .

{Ampund in Rs.000)

As at Agat
Manch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
iyl 76

1,326,370 1,319,015
1,326,622 1,319,091

As at March 31, 2022

Cutstanding for following periods from the due date of payment

As at
March 31, 2022

Particulars Less (han 1 year 1-2 yoars 2-3years | More than 3 years Total
MEME 193 12 48 - 52
Others 10,500 3,06 3,233 1,307,588 1,325,370
Disputed dues- MSME R _ - . "
Disputed dues- Others - - - - R
Total 10,693 3,058 5,283 1,307,558 1,326,622
As at March 37, 2025 Outstanding for (ollowing periods from the due date of payment As at
March 311, 2021
Parliculars Less than 1 year 1-2 vears 2-3 years Wlore Lhan 3 vears ‘Tukal
MSMNE 76,11 - - - 765,11
Oilers 5,334.51 5,636.76 9,152.95 1,298,490.53 §,.319,014.75
Dispated dueg- MSME - - - - -
Dismated dues- Olhers - - - - -
Total 5410.62 5,006.76 9,152.95 1,298,85(.53 1,319,090.86
Note 18. Borrowings- Cuurent portion As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Matarities of Tnebian Rupoe Term Loan 43,868 3,778,723
Current Malurities of Foreign Currency Loan From Financial Institton - 1,063,529
45,868 4,842,252
MNote 14. Other Financial Liakility- Current portion As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interesi accrued bad net due on borrowings 355 2452
Tnberest aceraed and due on borrowings 85,510 4,720,730
85,266 4,728,191
Note 15. Current Provision Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Employee Beneliis
-Provision {for Gratuity 12 11
~Provision fur Leave Fngashment 57 57
LE] 6%
Nofe 16, Other Currenl Liabilities As at Asat
Mach 2, 2022 March 31, 2021
Amonnt Recoived against Arbilration Award {Refer note 24(a}) 3,807,925 6,784,237
Kefundable Security Deposit 30487 30,487
BG Encashment 432,691 432,691
Lmployee Benefit Payable 23 19
Staluiory Dues Fayable 326 1,298
Faxpense Payable 4,066 3,460
: 4,275,518 7,252,102
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{Amount in Rs.'000)

Note17. Other Income Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Interest received on
Fixed Deposits 24 54
Cthers 67 .
Total 90 54
Note 18. Employee Benefit Expenses Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Salaries and Wageas 8,8% 6,242
Contribution to Provident Fund and Other Fund 712 619
Staff Welfare Expenses 366 427
Total 9,974 7,288
Note 19. Finance Cosl Year ended Year ended
Mazich 31,2022 March 31,2021
Interest on Loan - -
- Interest on loans (other than those from related party) 1,917,509 1,951,049
- Inlerest on foreign currency loans 344,622 325,967
- Foreign lixchange IFluctuation Loss on ECB loans 131,786 (113,135)
Sub Total 2,393,017 2,163,880
Less : Transfer of Interest cost to DMRC receivable (2,393,917) (2,163,880)
Total Interest on Loan - -
Other interest 30,691 95
Other borrowing Cost (Including Bank charges) 6,942 8,057
Total ‘ 37,633 8,153

i
|
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|

{(Amount in Rs.'000)

Note 20. Other Expenses Year ended Year ended
March 31,2022 March 31,2021
Rent 127 115
Repairs and Mainlenance
- Others 63 4 ;
Insurance 42 48 :
Legal and Professional Charges : 46,787 26,498 |
Foreign [ixchange Fluctuation Loss (net) ’ 1,657 798 |
Communication Expenses &3 31
Vehicle Hire Charges 8 2
Travelling and Conveyance 57 46 ‘
Payment to auditors {refer note below) 153 124
Other Miscellaneous Expenses 40 22 %
Total 48,998 27,686 |
|
[

Note : Payment to Auditors

Year ended Year ended 1
Particulars : March 31,2022 March 31,2021
As auditors
Andit Fee 53 55| &
Limited Review 53 53
Qthers N »
In other Capacities
Certification 47 17 '
Total 153 124




DELHI ATRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Nole 21 : Financial Instruments - Accounting Classification and Fair Value Measurements |

The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instraments could be exchanged in a current
transaclion between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidalion sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimale the fair values:

1, Fair value of cash and short terms deposits, trade and other short roceivables, trade payables , other current liabilitics , short term Joans |
from banks and other financial institutions approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these |
instruments.

2, Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rates are evaluated by the Company based on paramcter such as interest rates
and individual credil worthiness of the counterparly. Based on this evaluation, allowances are taken ko account for the expected losses of !
these receivables. :

The company uscs the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments by valuation
technique:
Level: 1 Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 Other techniques for which all inputs which have a significant effect on the recorded fair valuc are observables, either directly or
indirectly

i
i
{
i

Level 3 : Technigues which use inputs that have a significant effect on the recorded fair value that ate not based on observable markel
data

Note 22 : Financial Risk Management Objective and Policies

The company's financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute ils business strategies. The Company's financial
risk management policy is sel by the Board of Directors. ' !

The Company's activities expose it to a variely of financial risks: credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk,

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk arises when a counterparty defaulis on its coniractual obligalions to pay resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
company’s business model was such that it worked purely on a cash basis for its fare revenue {which was the predominant source of
revenne,

Crodit risk arises when a counterparty defaults on its conlractual obligations to pay resulting in financial loss to the Company. The
compaity does not have any operations al present due to handing over of its operations to DMRC pursuant to default as per Concession
Agreement with effect from 1st July 2013, . '

Liquidity Risk
a) Post handing over of the operations to DMRC, the company obtains sub-ordinate debts and other debts from the Holding Company Lo
meet out the operational cost and repayment of loans.
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b) Maturities of financial liabilities;
Pursuant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), the "Company” had terminated he Concession
Agreement vide Torminalion Notice dated October 08, 2012 and consequently the entire assets (including project assets) had becn
handed over to DMRC with effect frem 1st July 2013 and the Company ceased to provide for depreciation/amertsation, Resultant
fmpact on the profit & loss account and the final adjustiment entries will be determined when the final order is passed. {refer Note 24 (a)}

The contractual maturity is based on the earliest date on which the Company may be required to pay.

Particulars Less than 1 Year 1-3 Years 3 Years to 5 Years 5 vears above
Financial liabilities
31-Mar-22
Boirowings 48,868 2,572,167 2,876,671 -
Trade payables 1,326,622 - - -
Other financial liabilities 86,206 - B -
Total 1,461,756 2,572,167 2,876,671 -
31-Mar-21
Borrowings 4,842,252 4,745,292 5,709,886 -
Trade payables 1,319,091 - - -
Other financial liabilities 4,724,191 - - -
Total 10,885,534 4,745,292 5,709,886 -

Marlcet Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices,
The company is exposed to 2 types of markel risks namely currency risk and interest rate risk. Flucluation on account of cu rrency risk
and intercst rate risk with respect to financial Labilities excepl trade payables {in foreign currency), are adjustable From Arbitration
award (refer Note 24 a).

a) Currency Risk:
The Company underlakes transactions denominated in forel gn currencies; consequently, exposures to exchange rate fluchiations arise,
Fluctuation on account of currency risk with respet to financial liabilitics are adjustable from the Arbilration Award (rcfer note 24 {a).

The carrying amounts of the Company’s foreign currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the year
arc as follows.

As at Mar 31, 2022 As at Maxch 31, 2021
Particul Foreign Curren i 5 i
articulars eign cy A}“U“nts in Amount {INR) A_}nnunls n Amount (INR)
foreign currency foreign currency
Trade payables LISD 1,508 114,282 1,508 110,237
Trade payables EUR 1,560 131,420 1,560 133,808
Advances Receivables ) EUR 348 29,332 348 20,865
Secured bank loans usD : 10,151 769,379 44,280 3,237,511
Entorest. Accrued bul not due on Ush 5 455 15 1,086
orrowings )
Interest  Accrued d d n
e pamedand due o USD 250 18,914 8,644 (31,982
orrowings .
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Foreign currency sensitivity
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD and EUR exchange rates, wilh all other variables
held constant, The impact on the Company”s loss before tax and equity is due to changes in the carrying value of monetary assets and
liabilities othor than secured bank loans since the exchange differences in respect of these loans are adjustable from arbitration award
{refer note 24a). The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material,

Effect on loss ;
Particulars Currency Change inrate |before tax and ;
- pre-tax equity
31-Mar-22
usD +10% ~11,428.25
Based on YOY change between FY21 usp ~10% 11,42823
& FY22 EUR +10% ’ -10,208.83
EUR ~10% . 10,208.83
31-Mar-21
UsD +10% -11,023.75
Based on YOY cha nge between FY20 usp -10% 11,023.75
& Fy21 EUR +10% -10,394,29
EUR -10% 10,394,29

b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash fows of a financial instrument will flucluate because of changes in market
interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s borrowings
with floating intercst rates. Pursuant to default of DMRC, any fluctuation on account currency risk and interest rate risk with respect to

financial liabilities excopt irade payables (in foreign currency), are recoverable from DMRC or adjustable against the arbitration award
(refer note 24 a). ’

Interest rate scnsitivity _

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on éxposure ko intercst rate for variable rate borrowings at the end of
reporling period. The analysis is prepared assuming the amount of Lability outstanding at the cnd of the reporting period was
outstanding for the whole year.

The sensilivity to a reasonably possible change in intorest rates on variable rate borrowings with all other variables held constant, the
Company’s profit before tax will not be affected bocause interest paid is recoverable from DMRC or adjustable against the arbitralion
award and Lhe arbitration award was given in favour of DAMEPL {rcfer note 24 a), '

Collaterals
The company has pledged part of its short term deposit in order to fulfil collateral {(margin's money) requirements of guarantces given in
favour of various Government Authorities and property plant and equipment's in favour of lenders, The amortised cost / carrying

amount of collaterals on each reparting date are given in table below, The counter parties have an obligation to return the securities to
the company upen settlement of contracts,

{Amount in Rs.'000)

As at Asat

Notes March 31, 2022]  March 31, 2021
Current
Financial assets
Tirst charge
Cash and cash equivalents {at Amortised cost) 5 924,346 139,126
Nor-[inancial assets - -
Total current assets pledged as security 934,346 139,126
Non-current
Firat charge
Property, plant and equipment at carrying cost 21 90,802 90,802
Intangible Assels (at carrying cost) - -
Fotal non-current assets pledged as security : 90,802 00,802,
Total assets pledged as security 1,025,148 | 229,928
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Nole: 23 Contingent Liabilities and commitments

Claim against the company not acknowledged as debts and under litigation:
Ll

{Amount in Ra, "0}

5, Mo, Contingent Liabilitics

As ab
March 31, 2022

As at

1 Liquidated Damages

the profect. The Company has paid Ks. 4348 crores against the same under protest. ‘e Company

is consdered as recoverable (Refer Note No 7).

Delhi Motro Rail Corporation {DMRC) has demanded Es 60.38 crores as liquidated damages for delay in completion o]

demand as the delay in execitton of fhe profect is attiibutable to DMRC and matter was referred to arbitation,
Arbitraturs awarded claim amount of Rs, 23.25 crores and interest on same Ks. 1.75 crores vide Award dated 27th June
2014 and susiained He balance in favour of DMRC, The company has challenged the award before the Delhi High Court.
Maller belng sub<udice, the net amount Rs, 34,97 (Le. Rs. 43.48 crores less R, 851 crores refunded by DMRC) to DMRC

has disputed the

603,800

March 31, 2021
603,800

2 Deployment cost of CIST:

claims was disputed by the Company and the matter was referred tu arbiteation,
Arbibrators awarcled the decision against the company vide Award dated 27l
Ure award before Hen'ble Delhi High Cout. :

The Ministry of Urban Developiment, Government of India had insisted on the engagement of Central Industvial Security|
Furce (CISF). Cost of deployment of CIST was Rs, 39.48 crores for the period from Tebruary 2011 to June 2013, Out of the
same Rs. 23.78 crores were provided in the books and balance K, 15,70 cores for the period fron 1st May 2012 to 30t
Jure: 2013 was nok provided in the books. The amount of Rs, 3948 crores along with interest and other miscellaneons

Jume 2014, The company has challenged

157,000

157,000

3 Clains ageinst the Company not acknowledged as debis

839,254

32,364

4 Disputed demands by Custom and Excise Authority

Chandigadh , fa same las not been provided in the books of accounts,

The company had in earlier years, claimed Cenwat Input Credit of Rs, 43,04,01,201/ - on purchases of fixed assets and
accordingly netted off fhe same from the "Right Under Concession Agreement", The daim of Cenvat Credit was
disallowed by Commissioner, vide Order No16/5T/COMMR, DM/ KTK/ 2014-15, dated 12-12-2014 which was under
dispule with Comimissioner of Customs and Excise, Dell and e alse Impased a penalty of Rs, 65.01 crores, The
company has filed an appeal with CESTAL against the order of commissioner and same js pending wilh CTISTAT,

650,100

650,100
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Note: 24

Note 25.

)| Receipt of Award and DMRC recetvable Amtin 000"
Oponing DMRC Rreceivable 18,246,795
PBanks Interest for the 1Y, 2021-22 2,262,131
Torex Loss for the B.Y. 2021.22 131,786
Tatal Recelvable as on 31.03.2022 20,640,712
Lesa t Tolal Recelpt from DIMEC HIL 3181 March 2002 24,448,637
Balance shown as Other current Habilily 3,807,925

. Termination of Concession Agreement

4) Purstant to certain events of default by Delhi Metro Rail Corporation (DMRC), Delhi Airport Metro Express Private Limited (DAMEPL), the "Company”, had
lerminated the Concession Agreement vide Termination Nolice dated October 08, 2012 and consequently the entire assets (neluding project assets) had been handed
over to DMRC with effect from 1st July 2013 and the Company ceased ko provide for depreciation/ amortisation. The dispute was referred to an Arbibration Tribwmal
whighy, vide its Award dated May 11, 2017, gratted Termination Payment and other compensation in favour of DAMEPL for Rs 4,662 59 crore along with post-Award
interest. The said Award wag upheld by the single bench of Hon'bio High Cowt of Delld and challenged before division beneh by DMRC; it was set aside by the
division bench of Hor'ble High Court of Delbi on January 15, 2019, DAMEPL filed Spoctal Leave Petition before the Fon'ble Supreme Court of Tudia against the sald
Judgement of Division Bench. The matler was listed for hearing by the Honorable Supreme Cowrt of Tndia on July 23, 2019, Meanwhile, an interhn direction vide order
dated April 22, 2019, was passed lo not declare DAMEPL' accounnts as Non-Performing Assets till further orders. Hearings commenced on Sepl 17, 2020, continued on
Sept 21 and Oct 07, 2020 and July 06-08, 2021. Vide Judgement dated September 09, 2021, the order of Single Bench of Delli High Court and the Award were upheld by
the Supreme Court. The Company filed execution petition before Delhi High Court on September 12, 2021 on which Delhi Hi sh Court passed final orders on March
10, 2022, During the year DMRC had deposited Rs.1766.44 crore in the sscrow account of the company as per inferim order daled Decamber 6, 2021 of Hon'ble Delli
High Court, and the same was utilised by the company for its debt repaynienis The Company bas challenged para 30 "The issue of Interest on Interest” of the Order
dated Mazch 10, 2022 of Delhi High Court before the Supreme Court where the matter was initially heard on March 28, 2022 and notice was issued to DMRC for reply.
By its judgement dated 3th May, 2022 the Flon, Supreme court has disuissed the peition Hled by the company and upheld the judgenent of Fligh Court. The compnay
{s evaluting the judgement and contemplatos to filed a reveiew petition against the judgement . Also since DMRC has not paid the instalmerd due on 30th April, 2072
atleast & the extent of the undisputed portion the company will be filing suitable proceding for speedy relalisation of the sums receivable, Restillant inypact on Hie

profit & loss account and the fnal adjustment entries will be delermined after the expcution of final awacd.,

by Ther holding company has infused funds into the Company by way of Suburdinate Debl and Inter Corperate Deposits for the purpose of the Project. DAMEDL has
been set up to undertake Lhe business of “Degign, Installation, Comimissioning, Operation and Maintenance of Airport Metra Express Line Lo, New Delhi - Indira
Gandhi International Alrport - Dwarka Sector-21" (project). Delhi Molro Reil Corporation Limited (IMRC) had entered inte a Concession Agreement with the
Company on August 25, 2008 for the projoct for a period of 30 years. These funds infused, carry wero percent interest and are repayable by mutual consent of the

parties only after the sentor lenders (Banks and Financial Instisition) ave paid m Full,

On May 11, 2017, the Arbital Tribunal awarded claim in favour of fhe Compary which included fnterest on Termination Payment. The same award were upheld by
the Hon. Supreie Court vide judgement dated September 09, 2021, Since the Company would be teceiving interest on the Funds infused by the promoter for the
purpnse of the Project, the promoter has raised clainy for interest on the funds infused by them fromn the date of commencoment of the arbitral proceedings and at a
rate equivalent to fhe rate awarded by Lhe arbitral tribunal and Hon'ble Supreme Court, The fnterest expenditure as claimed by the promoters is not accounted for

sitce Lhe matter is sub-judice,

d) Additional works elaims

The Company had also filed claims worth Es. 102.36 Crores un aceount of change m Scope, namely additional works for the baggage handling system (Rs. 25,12
crores), additional works related to Passenger Tunnel at 1GI Adrport Siation (Rs. 22,89 crores) and various other addilional works {Rs. 54.35 crores), which have not
been awarded in favour of the company vide award dated 27th Tune 2014, The Company has challenged the award before Tlon'ble THigh Court of Delli.

Un-hedged Poreign Currency Risk Fxpostre

TForeign Currency Risk Exposures are not hedged by derivative instruments or otherwise. Parbeulars of Un-hedged forcign currency exposure as at the reporting dade

are as follows:

Foveign Currency {USI2 '000}

{Amount in Rs,'000}

As at As at As af As at
Foreign Currency [xposure in USD March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Payalles 1,508 1,508 114,282 110,237
Borrowing [rom Banks 10,151 ° 44,280 769,379 3,237,311
Tnterest accrued but not due on borrowings 5 15 335 108G
Interest acerued and doe on borrowings 250 8,644 18,914 631,953
T'otal Payables 11,913 54,447 902,931 3,980,618
Foreign Currency (EURC '000) {Amount in Rg,'000)
Asat As at Asat Asg at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 Mavch 32, 2022 March 31, 2021
Fareign Currency Exposure in Burp
‘[Tade Payables 1,560 1,560 131,420 133,808
Total Payables 1,560 1,560 131,420 133,808
Advances 348 348 20337 20865
Total Receivables 348 348 29,332 29,865
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Note 26, Employee benefit ocbligations

A. Defined contribution plans
() Provident Fund;:
{b) State Defined Contribution Plan:
-Employer’s Contribution to Empioyecs’ Pension Scheme 1995
-Nalional Pension Scheme

Company are required 1o contrilmte a specified percentage of payrall cost to the retirement benefit schemes to fand the benelits. 'These funds are recoguized by the
Tncome tax aukiorities. The only obligation of the company with respect lo the retirement benefit plan is o make the specified contiibution, The total expenses
recognised in Statement of Profit and loss of Rs.269 thousand {for the year ended March 31, 2021: Ks. 225 thousand) represent contriluitons payable to these plans by
the conpany at rates specified in the rules of the plans. As at March 31, 2022, contributions of Rs, 22 thousand (as at darch 31, 2021 Rs, 19 thousand ) due in respact of

2021-22 had not been paid over o the plans. The amounts were paid subseguent to March 31, 2022,

The Company has recognised the fullowing ameunts as expense in the fnancial statements for fhe yeai:

Particulars Forthe yearended | For the year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Contrilattion ke Frovident Tuned 343 271
Contribution to National Persion Sclheme 269 225
Total ) 612 496

B. Defined benecfit plans

Gratuity is payable to employees as per Payment of Graluity Act. Valuations in respect of Gratuity have been carried out by independent actuaty, as at the

Sheet dale, based on the assumplions described below.

{a) Gratuity

The Company oporates a funded gratuity plan administered by tust. Bvery employee is entitled to a benefit equivale
completed year of service in line with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 or Compary scheme whichever is benefic
fram the Company or retirement, whichever is earlier, The benufils vest after five years of continuous service,

Balance

mit 1o fifteen days salary last drawn for each
fal. ‘The same is payable at e time of separation

Particulars PV of obligation PV of Plan Assels Tatal

As at April 1, 2020 1,372 1,372
Current Service Cost 128 138
Interest Expense/ {Income) 20 o
Total Amount Recognised in Statement of Profit & Loss 229 228
Remeasuremenl (gains)/losses;

Relurn on plan assets, exchading amount included in interest gxpense/ (income) - B
Actuarial (Gain )/loss from change in deraographic assumptions - -
Actuarial {Gain )/ loss from change in financial asswmptions A 0 21
Actuarial (gain)/loss froin change In Experience adjustinents (139 {139)
Total Amount Recognised in OCT (119) ] {119)
Coniributions ; -

Enplayers - -
Withdrawals - -
Bencfit Payments - .
As At March 31, 2021, 1482 0 1,482
Parliculars I’V of obligaiion FV of Plan Assets Total

As at April 1, 2021 1,482 1482
Currenl Service Cost 121 12]
Interest Expense/ (Income) | ) v3 93
Total Amount Recognised in Slal 1t of Profif & Loss 214 214
Bemeasurement (gatus)/losses;

Return on plan assets, excluding amount included in injerest expense/ (income) - -
Actaarial {Gain )/loss from change in demograplic assuniptions 08} ()
Actuarial (Gain }/loss from change in financial assumptions {9} i} (%)
Actuarial {gain)/1ogs from change in Experience acljustiments (119) {119)
‘Tolal Amount Recognised in OCI {129) 0 {129)
Contributions

Employers - -
Withdrawals - -
Benefit Payments - -
As At March 31, 2022 1,566 0 1,566

i
¢
i
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The net liability relates to funded plans is as follows:

Particulars

Asat Asat
‘ March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Present value of funded defined bencfit olligations 1366 1,482
Tair value of plan assets 0 [i
Punded status Surplus/(Deficit) {1,566) {1,482)
Cithers - -
Net liabilily arising (rom defined benefit obligation {1,566) {1,482)

The plan exposes the company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rato risk, salary risk and Iongevity risk,

lovrestment risk

'The present value of fe defined benefit planiabikity is calculated using a discount rate
which fs determined by reference kn market ylelds at the end of the raporting period on
governtient bonds,

Interest rigk

A decrease in the bond Interest rate will increase the plan liability; however, this will be
partially offset by an increase in the retum on the Plaw’s debt nvestments.

Tomgavity risk

The present value of the defined beraiit plan liability ia calculated by referenco (o the best
estiriate of e mortality of plan participants, An increase in fie life expectanicy of the plan
participants will increase the plan's Ualility,

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is caleulated by reference to the
future salaries of plan parlicipants. As sucly, an increase in the salary of the plan
participants will increase the plan's Liabiflily.

€. Significant estimates; Actuarial assumptions and sensitivily
The significant actuarial assuraplions were as follows:

’frticulms ’ Asat As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Mortality Rate IAL 2012-14 (Urban) | TAT. 2006-08 Ultimate

Abirition Rate 0% M A, 0% A,

Imputed Kale of Interest (1) G.41% PLA, 6.26% PLA,

Salary growth rate 5% PLA. 5% A,

Relurn on Plan Assets N.A N.A,

Remaining Workiug Life 5 Years & Years

- I, Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity of the defined benefit ubligation lo changes in fhe weighted principal assumptions is:

{a} Change in Assumptions

Particulaws As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

Salary growth rate /-1 1% BLA, (+/-11% P.A,

Discounl rate (/1% Pa, {+/-3 1% DA,

Attrition rate (/1% PA. (+/)1% PA

{b) Impact on defined berefit obligation

Increase in assumptions

Decrease in assumptions

Particnlars Agat Asat Asat Asat

March 31, 2022 March 31, 201 March 31, 2027  March 31, 2021
Salary growth rate - 1 - (1)
Discownt rate {56) {66) 59 70
Allrition rale 1n 7 - -

The above sensitivity analyses arc based on a change in an assumption while helding
in some of lhe assumplions may be corrclated, Wien cakeulating the sensitivity of the
(present value of the defined benefit obligation calculaled with the projected
calculating the defined benofit liability recogrised in the balance sheet.

The methods and types of assumptions nsed i prepariug the sensilivity analysis did

E, The following payments are expected contribution to the defined benefit plan in future years

not change compared to the prior period.

all other assumiplions constant, Tn practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes
defined benefit obligation to significent actyarial assumptions the same method

urt credit methed at the end of the teporting periad) has been applied as when

Gratuily
Particulars As at Asgat

Miuch 371, 2022 March 31, 2027
Within the next 12 months i.e. 2022-23 (PY: 202722y 12 11
2023-24 (PY: 2022-2%) 13 13
2024-27 (Y 2023-26) 1,975 48

beyond 2007 {PY: beyond 2026)

1,922
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Note 27,

Nuote 28,

Segmient Repinting
There are no reportable segments in accordance with Indian Aceountin
Standards) Rules, 2015 as amendedl,

Related Party Disclogures »

As per the Indian Accounting Siandard-24 prescribed under the Compandes (Indian Accowing Standards) Rules,

and transaclions are disclosed below:
A} Holding Company
Rellanice Infrastiucture Limited (R nfra)

B}  Fellow Subsidiary
Reliance Velocity Timited

C]  Juint Venture of holding Cumpanies
Ulility Powertech Tiwdled {(UPL)

D)  Key management personnel
M. Rakesh Kumar Yadav -Wholelime Director

E) Tranaactions with related party
Key management personnel compensation

g Standard-108 ‘Operating Segment’ preseribed undor the Conpanies {Indlian Accounting

2M5 as amended, the Company’s related parties

{Amounts in Rs,'000)

Particulas

Asat Asal
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Compensation of key management persormnel* 9,234 5,650
Payment in professional Capacity - 869
Post - emiployment benefits - -
Terminalion benelits - -
Total conipensation 9,234 6,519
¥ Compensalion includes post retiremort beneits and perquisites
# The transactions with the rlated parties are disclosed only till / frum e date relation exists
F) Transaclions wilh related parties (Amounts in Rs.'000)
Particulars Ay at Ag at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Statement of profit and logs heads
Other Transactions
ICD taken
- Reliance Infrashructure Limited 15,520 33,908
~ Reliance Velocity Timited 35,904 .
Oulstanding balances arising from salefpurchases of goods and servicea
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
‘Trade Payable
- Reliance Infrastiuciure T.imited 5,594 5,504
- Ukility Powertech Lindted 7 37
Outatanding balances for Loaas to/from related parties
Particulars As at Asgat
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance sheet heads (Closing balances):
- Reliance Infrastructure Limited
Subordinated Dbl 14,502,028 14,502,028
0% Subordinale Debt received 9,510,897 9,510,897
Inter Corporate Deposit 1,242,884 1,227,364
- Reliance Velocity Limited .
[nler Corpurate Deposit 35,904 -

"The above disclosure dres not include Iransactions with Public utitity service providers, viz. electricity
Bank Guarantee given by holding Company, M/s Reliance Infrastructure Limited to Commisgivner of

for debt servicing,

and communication in e normal course of business,

Customs, Mumbai Ra, 193638404 /- (PY: Rs, 193,638,404/

A Corporate Undertaking had been provided by the holding Company, M/s Kaeliance Infrastructure Limited to Conwortium Lenders (Banks and Financial Institution)
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DELHI AIRPORT METRO EXPRESS PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 29,

Note 39,

MNote 31

Note 32,

MNote 33.

Nate 34,

Mofe 35.

Earning per Equity Share

Particulars Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 Marcly 31, 2021

T.o8 for the year attributable ko the owners of the Company (Rs.) {26.515) (43,074)
Weighted average number of equity shares 960,000 960,000
Nominal value per share (Rs.) ' 10 10
Basic carninga per share (Rs.) {101} {43)
Diluted earnings per share (Rs.y (101) (45)
{see note below)

Note; There are no outstanding dilutive polential equity shares

Deferred ‘T'ax Assels

Tn compliance with IND A5-12, "Income Taxes" prescribed under the Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2013 as amended, the deferred tax asset
on account of brought forward losses anel unabsorbed depreciation has not been recognised in view of consideration of prudience and ancertainly re
realisation of the same in the foreseeable futire.

arising
garding Lhe

{Amoants in R, '000)

Deferred Tax Asscls As at As al

Mar 31, 2022 Mar 31, 2021
Deferred 'Uax Liability
Excess depreciation as per Companies act over Income Tax act {737,845) (737,845)
Grass Delerred Tax Liability . (737 845) {737,843)
Deferred 'T'ax Assels
Unabsarbed depreciation & Carry forward Losses 2,293,382 3,738,128
Pravigion for Leave Fncashment and Graluity . : 622 592
Provision for doubtful debt 3122 3,122
Groas Deferred Tax Assets . 2,297,126 3,741,842
Deferred Tax Asscts {Net) . 1,559,281 3,003,997
Diflered Tax Income/ Loss for the vear ) {1,444,716) {730,957)

Delay in repayment of Loans and interest
*The Overdie antount as on 31st March 2022 are as under :

{Amounts in Rs, '000)

Bank Amount due -Interest |Amount due -Principal|Period
Repayment

Asls Bank 7720 -|Mar-22
Allahabad Bank 5,888 -|idar-22
Andhara Bank 3,452 -|Mar-22
Bank of Indfa . 8,157 -|Mar-22
Canara Bank 2,005 -{Mar-22
Central Bank of Indla 7110 -|Mar-22
Bank of Baroda {Dena Bank) 13,784 -|Mar-22
Punjab & Sindh Bank 5,580 -|Mar-22
UCO Bank ) 8,807 -|t1ar-22
I UK 22,670 -{Feb 22 to Mar 22
Total 86,265 -

¥ Since the matter is sub-judice and as an interim direction vide order dated April 22, 2019 and the award were upheld by the Hon, Supreme Court vide juclgement
dated September 09, 2021 {rofer note 24 (),

Capltal Management

"The Company considers Lhe foilowing components of its Balance Sheet to be managud capital:
1. Total equity - Share Capital, Retained Profit/ (Loss) and Other Egudly.

2. Working capilal.

The Company manages ils eapital so as to safeguard its ability to continue aa a going concern. The capital structure of the Company is based on managemnent’s
judgement of the appropriate balance of key clements in order to mect ils strategic and day-lo-day neods. The Company considers the ameuni of rapital in proportion
ko 1isk and manage the capital structure in light of changes in economic eonditions and the risk characteristics of the unclerlying assets.

Fursuant o default by DMRC, the management monitors the requirerment of eapital Lo repay the borrowings and to meet the olher operational

costs uf the company
from lime to time and infuse the capital through sub-ordinate debt, which is dlassilied as other equity.

Going Concern

The Company has accurmulated losses which exceed its net worth of the cempany. However Hon'ble Supreme Conrt on September 9, 2021 upheld the arbitral award
n favour of the company , in the matler of the dispute between Company and Delhi Metro Rail Corporation T,imiled {DMRC), arising due to termination of the
Concession Agreement for Delhi Airpert Metro Express Line Project. DMEC is consequently divecte Lo pay Termination Payment and other compensation, totalling
to Rs, 2,45 Crore, plus pre-award and posl-award interest up to the date of payment. The Company had filed execution petition dated Septemiber 10, 2021 before

THon'ble Delhi Figh Court seekitg execation of the Award against DMRC, Tn view of the above, The company has continued to prepare its financial results on a
‘Going Concern” basis, Refer Note 24 {a) above,

Impairment of Fixed Adgets
The arbitral award amount was mere than the carrying value of fixed assets. (Refer Note 24 (a).

Events occurring after the reporting period
{a) Other events
Thera are ne avents occwrring affer the reporting period which have material impact on the fhwig&@i_ﬁlfs_l




DELR! AIRPFORT MITRO EXPRESS PRIVA'FE LIMITED

Notes forming part of Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

Note 36

Ratlo disclosures

Sr No. |Particulars

As at March 31, 2022

As at March 31, 2021

Explanation

a)  |Current ratio 16.31% 101.38%

b} |Debi-Equity ratio 32.03% 114.55%

c} Debt service coverage ratio - - |The company had invoked the
arbifration against DMRC and
received arbitration award in
favour of company. All Lendsrs
outsatnding dues are paid or to
be paid against the recelpt of
award amount from DMRC,
Refer Note 24(a}.

d Return on equity ratio -0.55% -0.25%

Juity

e} Inventory turnover ratio - -

fy Trade recelvables turmover ratio - .

g} Trade payables lurnover ratio - -

h) Net capital turnover ratio R -

i} Net profit/ {loss) ratio - ,

i Relurn on capilal employed . -

k) Return on investment R

Details of numerater and deneminator for co

mputing the akova ratlos

{(Amount in Rs.'000)

Sr No. |Particulars

As at March 31; 2022

As at March 31, 2021

i} Current ratio
Current assets
Current Liability
i) Dabt-Equity ratio

Shareholder's acuity
M) Debt servica coverage ratio

iv) |Net profit /{loss}
v) Invantory

vi] | Trade raceivables
vii)  |Trade payables
vili) | Turmover

x} Gapital employed
Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Capital employed

X) Investmeant

Debt {inculding accured Interast)

935,881.92
5,737,343.53

5,583,972.20
17,434,020.86

(96,615.01)

1,326,622.58 ¢

28,622,533.98
5,737,343.53
22,885,190.45

16,287,648.98
18,137,785.05

20,021,620.89
17.478,120.87

(43,073.99)

1,319,080.85

46,074,301.04
18,137,795.05
27,236,505.99

The company had invoked tha
arbitration against DMRC and
raceived arbitration award in
favour of company. All Lendsrs
outsatnding dues are paid or to
be paid against the recelpt of
award amount from DMRC,
Refer Note 24(a).
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Notedy

Previous yeas .
The previous yooe figures have been Tegtouped and reateatiged whetover necessary.

In tacmi of cur Rapott of sven date

For-Bakliwal & Lo Foizand-on behalfof theBomd— v
Chatlered Aceouintants

Firm Regrn. Mop-1950381W

o f
Ankuy ]ﬂP{ ) . Milind Rynchanybn Mule Rakeyh Kimar Yadav
Pailor Director Diveotoy
Membership Wo. 197643 . DIN:O0BESTRSS DIN-ng364855
Flaca : Mumbai Place : Mew Dreltd
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